
Please ask for  Elaine Wilkes: Telephone (01362) 656354 
e-mail: elaine.wilkes@breckland.gov.uk 

 
AGENDA 

 

NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only 

 
 
 

Committee - STANDARDS COMMITTEESTANDARDS COMMITTEESTANDARDS COMMITTEESTANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Date & Time - TUESDAY, 8 JULY, 2008 AT 2.15 pm 

Venue - NORFOLK ROOMS, CONFERENCE SUITE, 
ELIZABETH HOUSE, WALPOLE LOKE, 
DEREHAM 

 
 

 

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two 
working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is available, 

this will be provided, and reported to Committee. 

 

Committee Members 
  
Mr. M. Eveling JP (Independent) 
Mrs. J. Jenkins (Independent)(Chairman) 
Mr. D. Myers (Breckland) 
Mrs. M. Oechsle JP (Parish) 

Mr. B. Rayner (Parish) 
Mr. G. Ridgway (Independent) 
Mr. F. Sharpe (Breckland) 
Mr. M. Whittley (Parish) 
Mr. D. Williams JP (Breckland) 
 

 
 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones 

Member Services  
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Friday, 27 June 2008  
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Standards Committee 
8 July 2008 

 

 

 

PART APART APART APART A    

ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLICITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLICITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLICITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC    

 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

1. MINUTES  1 - 5 

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 27 May 2008.  

 

2. APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence.   

3. URGENT BUSINESS   

 To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent 
business pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 
1972.  

 

4. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may have 
in any of the following items on the agenda.  The Members’ Code of Conduct 
requires that declarations include the nature of the interest and whether it is a 
personal or prejudicial interest.  

 

5. NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING   

 To note the names of any non-members wishing to address the meeting.   

6. MEMBERS' INTERESTS IN THE LDF PROCESS  6 - 13 

 
To consider any comments from the Breckland Members of the Committee 
on the Committee’s resolution at its last meeting (see Minute 36/08).  A copy 
of the officers’ report to that meeting is attached for convenience.  
 

 

7. APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION: SHIPDHAM PARISH COUNCIL  14 - 16 

 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive.  

 

8. LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL LETTER  17 - 26 

 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive.  

 

9. PARISH NEWSLETTER  27 - 31 

 
The attached newsletter is for discussion and approval before sending to all 
parish and town councils.  

 



Standards Committee 
8 July 2008 

 
 

 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

10. PRESENTATION ON INDUCTION INFORMATION   

 
As requested at the last meeting of the Committee, the Member Services 
Manager will give a presentation on the matters covered by the induction 
process for new Members of the Council. 
 
The induction process is designed to familiarise the new members at the 
earliest opportunity with basic structures and procedures, as a background 
against which their roles can develop with time, experience and further 
training. It covers the following areas: 
 

• Brief description of the District of Breckland 

• Council representation 

• Different tiers of local government and their respective powers 

• Breckland’s culture 

• Principles to be upheld by councillors  

• Non-elected Members 

• The Council’s political structure – 
                          The Council 
                          The Executive 
                          Overview and Scrutiny 
                          The regulatory committees 

• The Council’s management structure 

• Councillor roles and job descriptions 

• Training and induction 

• Members’ allowances and other support 

• The Constitution, particularly procedural Standing Orders 

• Prospects for the future 

 

11. NEXT MEETING   

 
To note the date of the next meeting on Tuesday, 9 September 2008 at 2.15 
p.m. in the Norfolk Room, Elizabeth House, Dereham.  

 



1 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 

At a Meeting of the 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Held on Tuesday, 27 May 2008 at 2.15 pm in 
Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham 

 
PRESENT  
Mrs J. Jenkins (Chairman) 
Mr M.D. Eveling JP 
Mrs M. Oechsle JP 
 

Mr B.D Rayner 
Mr G. Ridgway 
 

 
In Attendance  
Susan Allen - Standards Officer 
John Chinnery - Solicitor & Standards Consultant 
Tim Leader - Deputy Chief Executive 
Andrea Long - Environmental Planning Manager 
Ian Vargeson - Member Services Manager 
Elaine Wilkes - Senior Member Services Officer 

 
 
 Action By 

34/08 MINUTES  
 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 6 May 2008 were confirmed as 
a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

 

   

35/08 APOLOGIES  
 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Messrs. D. Myers, F. 
Sharpe, D. Williams.  An apology for absence was also received 
from Mr. M. Whittley after the meeting.  

 

   

36/08 MEMBERS' INTERESTS IN THE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT 
FRAMEWORK PROCESS (AGENDA ITEM 7)  

 

 
The Solicitor and Standards Consultant presented the report, which 
outlined the difficulties and issues which members of Breckland 
Council and the Town and Parish Councillors in the Breckland area 
would have during the process leading to the adoption of the new 
Local Development Framework (LDF). 
 
The LDF was the new Development Plan Document covering the 
Breckland District and was relevant to the development control 
process and would define settlement boundaries and development 
areas. 
 
The LDF process had now reached the point where the Council 
needed to look at individual settlement boundaries and policies 
around the towns and villages and specific site details. 
 
The opportunity for landowners to put forward their sites had elicited 
a number of land bids and requests for settlement boundary 
amendments.  The Council needed to be clear and transparent 
about how it determined which sites were to be allocated for future 
development. 

 

Agenda Item 1

1



Standards Committee 
27 May 2008 

 
 

2 

 Action By 

 
The issue of members’ interests was relevant to the fact that land 
had been put forward which was either owned directly or by a close 
family member of 15 Breckland Councillors.  In addition, some 
parish councils had put forward land that they owned for inclusion 
and a number of Breckland councillors are also parish councillors in 
those particular wards.  Other parish councillors will have put 
forward their own bids.  There were also some Breckland members 
who were directly representing clients and putting forward land bids, 
or were active in the development industry in a professional 
capacity. 
 
Specific advice had been issued to Breckland members by letter 
dated 2 November 2007 but it was felt desirable as the Site 
Specifics stage of the LDF commenced to review the position, 
particularly bearing in mind that one of the principal reasons, aside 
from the provisions of the Members’ Code of Conduct, why 
Members’ interests were important in the LDF process was that 
participation of Members who had prejudicial interests in the 
process could lead to the process and the final LDF itself being 
procedurally tainted (i.e. found unsound). 
 
The Committee’s views and observations were sought, therefore, on 
the situations which might arise for District and Parish Councillors 
and on the advice so far given by officers.  The Committee was also 
asked to consider whether any further advice was needed or 
desirable at this stage to be given to members of the District and 
Parish Councils. 
 
The Committee concurred that the LDF process could present 
difficulties for members in being confident of when any interest they 
might have became a prejudicial interest.  Equally, the Committee 
was conscious that, in standards matters, the public perception of 
how these interests might be seen was highly relevant.   
 
While the Committee was quite satisfied that the Council’s 
processes were being properly conducted and there was no 
suggestion otherwise, it was felt that, given the role of the Policy 
Development and Review Panel 1 and the Cabinet in the LDF 
process, it could help to avoid any potential challenges and to 
safeguard members’ personal positions in connection with the Code 
of Conduct if the membership of Panel 1 excluded any Members 
who were promoting sites on behalf of themselves or any other 
person and if the Cabinet simply transmitted site specific documents 
direct to Full Council, rather than be involved in debating them. 
 
It was also considered important for the members of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Commission to continue to be mindful of the need to 
declare any personal or prejudicial interest in receiving references 
from Panel 1 on the LDF in appropriate circumstances. 
 
In this way, the Committee felt that the Council would safeguard its 
position as the LDF progressed through the decision making 
process. The public perception of the standards being applied to the 
process was important.  In assessing the application of the Code to 
their own circumstances, members should observe the spirit of the 

2



Standards Committee 
27 May 2008 

 
 

3 

 Action By 

Code as well as the detail. 
 
For these reasons, the Committee 
 
 RECOMMEND to the Council that: 
 

(1) Policy Development and Review Panel 1 be 
reconstituted to ensure that it is not comprised of any 
Members who are promoting sites under the LDF on 
behalf of themselves or any other person; 
 

(2) On the basis that a number of members of Cabinet were 
making representations or were involved in the process, 
Cabinet be not involved in the deliberation of LDF sites 
specifics allocations, settlement boundaries and other 
matters but simply transmit site specific documents direct 
to full Council; 
 

(3) Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission 
continue to be mindful of the need to declare any 
personal or prejudicial interest in receiving references 
from Panel 1 on the LDF in appropriate circumstances; 
 

(4) the Council remains conscious of public perception and 
of the need to act in the spirit of the Code of Conduct at 
all times; and 
 

(5) the general advice on members’ interests as given in 
paragraph 7 of the report of the Monitoring Officer be 
endorsed.  

   

37/08 MEMBER TRAINING (AGENDA ITEM 8)  
 

 
The Member Services Manager advised that there was a small 
budget allocated to the Elected Member Development Programme 
to assist the Council towards its objective to attain EERA Charter 
status for Elected Member Development.  The inspection and 
assessment for Charter status was due to take place in November 
2008. 
 
One of the primary tasks for the Council was to identify individual 
and corporate training needs and to tailor training to those needs.  
The Member Development process was being managed by the 
Member Training Panel. 
 
All elected members of the Council had been asked to complete a 
questionnaire which addressed the various aspects of a councillor’s 
role.  The responses from these would be analysed to establish 
what was needed and how best to meet the needs identified. 
 
Other general training was carried out by the Council through its 
Member Induction procedures, with more specific training being 
provided where necessary in areas such as development control, 
licensing, scrutiny, standards, risk management, media, shared 
services, public speaking etc.  Training on chairmanship was 
currently outstanding. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3



Standards Committee 
27 May 2008 

 
 

4 

 Action By 

 
The Committee was invited to indicate any areas of training they felt 
would be beneficial to them and which could be followed up. 
 
After a brief discussion, the Committee agreed it would be useful to 
have a presentation of relevant information taken from that used for 
the Council’s Member Induction training, which would enable them 
to have an overview of how the Council worked as a whole. 
 
 RESOLVED that the Member Services Manager be asked to 

give a presentation to the next meeting of the Committee as 
outlined above. 

 
As an addendum to this item, it was noted that the Council had not 
been able to accede to the Committee’s request for funding for 
additional places at the next Standards Board for England Annual 
Assembly as there was insufficient budget.  The position was noted.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ian Vargeson  

   

38/08 MEMBERS' EXPENSES (AGENDA ITEM 9)  
 

 
The Member Services Manager explained the background to the 
Council’s scheme of allowances for independent and co-opted 
members and to the Council’s overall scheme of members’ 
allowances generally. 
 
The Independent Remuneration Panel was due to be re-appointed 
later this year and the Panel would then conduct a review of the 
Council’s scheme of allowances, which would include looking at any 
increases in duties.  It was noted that any increases were payable 
retrospectively. 
 
A member commented that there was a case for a review of the 
allowances payable to independent and co-opted members of this 
Committee, which was meeting more frequently and to take account 
of the new responsibilities being placed on standards committees 
under the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007.  The present allowance of £339 per annum appeared 
unrealistic, particularly in the case of those members who lost 
earnings as a result of attending meetings. 
 
The Member Services Manager replied that the level of additional 
work of the committee should be known by the time the Independent 
Remuneration Panel began its review of the scheme of allowances, 
when members’ views and comments could be taken into account, 
and any anomalies corrected (for example, the question of 
allowances for independent chairmen of sub-committees, which was 
something not in existence before now). 
 
The position was noted.  

 

   

39/08 NEW PROCEDURAL ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING WITH 
CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS (AGENDA ITEM 6)  

 

 
The Solicitor and Standards Consultant presented the Assessment 
and Review Procedures, which had been taken from the guidance 
received from the Standards Board for England. 

 

4



Standards Committee 
27 May 2008 

 
 

5 

 Action By 

 
It was accepted that the procedures would evolve over time and with 
experience but they gave the Committee an adequate basis from 
which to proceed. 
 
The procedures would be kept under review and could be amended 
in the light of experience. 
 
Some minor textual corrections were noted, subject to which it was 
 
 RESOLVED that the Assessment and Review procedures be 

adopted.  
   

40/08 NEXT MEETING  
 

 
The arrangements for the next meeting on 8 July 2008 were noted.  

 

   

 
 
The meeting closed at 3.56 pm 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

5



BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive/Monitoring Officer to the 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE – 27 May 2008 
 
MEMBERS’ INTERESTS IN THE LDF PROCESS 
 

1. Purpose of Report 

         To outline the difficulties and issues which members of Breckland Council and the 
Town/Parish Councillors in the Breckland area will have during the process leading to 
the adoption of the new Local Development Framework (LDF).   

 

2. Recommendations 
 The Committee is asked to give their observations on the general advice given by 

officers and to give views on the specific points raised in paragraphs 8.2 and 8.3 
dealing with Cabinet and Panel 1. 

  

 
Note:  In preparing this report, due regard has been had to equality of opportunity, 
human rights, prevention of crime and disorder, environmental and risk management 
considerations as appropriate.  Relevant officers have been consulted in relation to any 
legal, financial or human resources implications and comments received are reflected in 
the report. 

3. Introduction:  The LDF Purposes And Process 

3.1 The Local Development Framework (LDF) will be the new development plan which will 
replace the current Local Plan and will be the document which gives local planning 
policies and the basis for the assessment of any development proposals and planning 
applications during its lifetime.  The whole process is a statutory procedure, involving a 
number of specific stages of drafting, consultation, examination and adoption.  A chart 
showing the procedures in outline is attached at Appendix 1.  The principal committees 
involved are Policy Development and Review Panel 1, Cabinet, Development Control 
Committee and full Council. 

3.2 Breckland is approaching the Site Specific elements of the LDF.  During this part of the 
process, decisions will have to be made by the Council in a range of matters including 
settlement boundaries and policies affecting different villages and towns. 

3.3 The opportunity for landowners to put forward their sites has elicited a number of land 
bids and requests for settlement boundary amendments.  The Council needs to be 
clear and transparent about how it determines which sites are to be allocated for future 
development. 

3.4 Land has been put forward which that is either owned directly or by a close family 
member of 15 Breckland Councillors.  In addition, some parish councils have put 
forward land that they own for inclusion and a number of our Members are also Parish 
Councillors in these particular wards.  Other Parish Councillors will have put forward 
their own bids.  There are also some Breckland Members are either directly 
representing clients and putting forward land bids or active in the development industry 
in a professional capacity. 

4. Reasons why interests are important 

4.1 There are two principal reasons why Members’ interests are important in the LDF 
process:   

1. Participation of Members who have prejudicial interests in the process can lead to 
the process and the final LDF itself being procedurally tainted (i.e. found unsound) 

Agenda Item 6

6



and open to challenge in the courts.  Clearly, the Council must do everything it can 
to avoid this kind of legal uncertainty and difficulty. 

2. District Councillors and Parish Councillors must be careful not to breach the Code 
of Conduct:  the principal provisions which are relevant are clauses 5 (bringing your 
office/authority into disrepute), clause 6 (using your position as a Member 
improperly to confer on/or secure for yourself or any other person an advantage or 
disadvantage) and the clauses relating to declaration of personal or prejudicial 
interests.  Some other clauses may also be relevant from time to time. 

4.2 It should be remembered that it is up to each individual Member to consider his or her 
position in connection with the Code and to observe it.  In particular, it is up to 
individual Members to decide whether they have personal or prejudicial interests at 
any meeting at which the LDF or any part of it is discussed, and to be careful to avoid 
taking part and to leave the room if the interest is prejudicial.  Now that we are at the 
Sites Specific stage, these interests will become very important. 

5. Issues 

5.1 Issues are likely to arise when discussion around land allocations and exact 
delineation of settlement boundaries in particular parishes takes place.  It needs to be 
clear who is allowed to take part in these discussions and who is not, since a 
discussion may be of benefit to a Member as landowner or to a landowner via the 
Member as agent.  Generally, there are four categories where this may incur: 

• Members bidding for allocations on their own land or on land owned by 
family members (usually large scale). 

• Members bidding for small scale sites or amendments to settlement 
boundaries for the occasional plot. 

• Members who are professional in the business – e.g. agents, or builders - 
representing other parties. 

• Members who are known to support particular land bids made by third 
parties. 

6. Questions 

6.1 In Breckland committees (including Cabinet) or Council, which Members have 
personal interests and can stay and take part and which have prejudicial interests 
and have to take no part and leave the room?  Does it make any difference whether 
discussions are taking place on general policies about settlement boundaries or on 
specific sites?  How will this be policed? 

6.2 The LDF team of officers regularly visit parish and town meetings, where Breckland 
Councillors may be present either as Parish Councillors themselves or as Ward 
Members.  There are also a number of Town and Parish Councils that are bidding for 
development on their own land. 

6.3 Other queries arise in connection with Breckland Council’s own land and officer 
interests. 

7. Advice to Date 

7.1 The Monitoring Officer, Standards Consultant and Standards Officer have been 
giving advice in general terms to Members and specifically to individual Councillors 
who have approached them for some months.  A general letter was sent to all 
Breckland Members on 2 November (see Appendix 2) and more specific advice has 
been sent to Executive Members and Members of Panel 1 by Tim Leader as 
Monitoring Officer on 1 May.  The points made to Members include the following: 

7



7.2 When at Breckland meetings the Members deliberate about general principles that 
should be used to determine whether a settlement should have a defined boundary 
or the principles that should be used to define a boundary, this will not normally give 
rise to a personal or prejudicial interest, unless for some special reason a particular 
policy happens to have direct effect on the Member or their family/close associates 
(e.g. if the Member has put in land representations which relate to that policy). 

7.3 The personal and prejudicial interest is, however, likely to arise if a Member with an 
interest in land away from the centre of a settlement is involved in determining 
whether that settlement should have a defined boundary or where it should be drawn.  
In this case the item would affect the Member more than it would affect most other 
people in the area and the connection would be significant. 

7.4 A personal and prejudicial interest is also likely to arise in the case of a Member who 
represents the interests of another Member who has a prejudicial interest – this 
would be either formally as planning or legal agent or more informally where the 
Member is assisting specifically in relation to a particular site or sites. 

7.5 Breckland Members or Parish Councillors can nevertheless take part in general 
discussions about overall policies or in connection with specific settlements if the 
Member does not have an interest that affects them (or their family or close 
associates) more than it would affect most of the other people in that area. 

7.6 A Member who has declared a prejudicial interest in one policy or in relation to a 
particular settlement boundary, and that interest is recorded and repeated when 
necessary (including leaving the room when applicable) is able to speak and vote on 
other parts of the LDF or the document as a whole. 

7.7 Breckland Members need to decide when they attend Parish Council meetings 
dealing with the LDF whether they are there are Breckland Ward Representatives, 
Parish Councillor or in a private capacity.  Whichever capacity it is, Members are 
advised to consider whether they need to declare an interest and should not to do or 
say anything which might be taken as using their position as a Councillor to secure 
any advantage for themselves or their family/associates. 

8. Committee Consideration 

8.1 The views and observations of the Committee are requested on the situations which 
may arise for District and Parish Councillors and on the advice so far given by 
Officers.  The Committee is also asked to consider whether any further steps are 
required or desirable at this stage to advise Members both in Breckland and Parish 
Councillors. 

8.2       The composition of Panel 1 might be seen as posing a particular challenge because 
of the relatively high number of members interested either professionally or as 
landowners or as friends of landowners in the site selection process. The 
Committee’s views are sought as to whether or not this can be adequately addressed 
through the operation of the Code of Conduct (ie declaration of interests, etc) or 
whether the composition of the Panel needs to be reviewed. 

8.3       Cabinet will be required to consider the LDF proposals but again several of the 
members are interested in the process. The quorum of Cabinet is three. The 
Committee’s views are sought on whether those Cabinet members concerned should 
be advised to apply for a dispensation or whether it would be wiser for Cabinet not to 
debate the proposals and to forward them direct to Council instead. 

8..4      In the absence of advice from the Committee to the contrary, the officers propose 
that the existing arrangement with Cabinet and Panel 1 should continue. 

  

8



8.5 Options 

             To make observations on the matters raised or to make no comment. 

9. Risk and Financial Implications 

9.1 Risk  

9.1.1 The risks are set out in this Report. 

9.2 Financial  

9.2.1 None 

10. Legal Implications 

10.1 See paragraph 4.1. 

11. Other Implications   :   None- 

12. Alignment to Council Priorities 

12.1 This Report relates to “Your Council, Your Services” 

13 Ward/Community Affected 

13.1 All. 

 
Background Papers 
Members’ Code of Conduct 
 
Lead Contact Officer: 
Name/Post: John Chinnery:  01362.656222  
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
1. LDF Process Chart 
2. Letter to members dated 2 November 2007 
 

9



10



11



12



13



BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive to the 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE – 8TH JULY, 2008 
 
APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION – SHIPDHAM PARISH COUNCIL – LOCAL 
DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 
 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 The Committee is asked to consider an application for a dispensation from Shipdham 
Parish Council in connection with the Local Development Framework Process. 

 

2. Recommendations 

 It is recommended that the Committee: 

2.1 Grants dispensations to all of the named individuals in accordance with Options 3.3.2 
and 3.3.3 

 
Note:  In preparing this report, due regard has been had to equality of opportunity, 
human rights, prevention of crime and disorder, environmental and risk management 
considerations as appropriate.  Relevant officers have been consulted in relation to any 
legal, financial or human resources implications and comments received are reflected in 
the report. 
 

3. Information, Issues and Options 

3.1 Background 

3.1.1 Regulations came into force on 18th March, 2002 entitled The Relevant Authorities 
(Standards Committee) (Dispensations) Regulations 2002 (S.I. 2002 No. 339). 

3.1.2 These Regulations prescribe the circumstances in which the Standards Committee 
may grant dispensations to Breckland members and parish and town councillors in 
the Breckland area.  If a member acts in accordance with the grant of such a 
dispensation, any participation in business prohibited by the mandatory provisions of 
the Model Codes of Conduct is not a failure to comply with the authority’s Code.  
These Regulations refer to the circumstance where a member, or more usually a 
number of members, finds they are in a position where they have to declare a 
prejudicial interest under the Code of Conduct and leave the room.  In the 
circumstances described in the Regulations, those members might be able to obtain 
a dispensation (i.e. permission) from a Standards Committee to stay in the meeting 
after declaring the interest and either just speak, or speak and vote according to any 
dispensation granted. 

3.1.3 The Regulations state that the Standards Committee can only grant dispensations in 
two circumstances:- 

 a) if more than half of the members entitled or required to participate in the 
business of the authority would not otherwise be able to, or 

 b) the authority would not be able to comply with the political balance principles. 

3.2 Issues 

3.2.1 Shipdham Parish Council consists of 11 members, although at present there are 2 
vacancies.  The quorum is 4. 

Agenda Item 7

14



3.2.2 The Clerk to the Parish Council has applied for dispensations on behalf of all 9 
members in connection with any matters concerning the Parish Council in the LDF 
(Local Development Framework) process. 

3.2.3 The named members and their prejudicial interests are set out below: 

Councillor Interest 

David Hill PC Land; Close Associate of Representee on LDF 

Paul Chubbock PC Land; Close Associate of Representee on LDF 

Paul Hewett Own/Family Land; PC Land; Close Assoc of Rpr’ee 

Mark Crane Own/Family Land; PC Land; Close Assoc of Rpr’ee 

Ralph Edward Malt PC Land; Close Associate of Representee on LDF 

Mary Joanne Kidd PC Land; Close Associate of Representee on LDF 

Marlene Secker PC Land; Close Associate of Representee on LDF 

Michael Shelly PC Land; Close Associate of Representee on LDF 

Vanessa de Selincourt PC Land; Close Associate of Representee on LDF 
 

3.2.4 The dispensations sought are to speak and vote.  However, the Committee do not 
have to grant dispensations for both, and can decide not to grant the requests at all.  
The Regulations state that the Committee must decide whether it is “appropriate” to 
grant the request.  The Standards Board for England Guidance states: 

“The Standards Committee will need to balance the public interest in 
preventing members with prejudicial interests from taking part in 
decisions against the public interest in decisions being taken by a 
reasonably representative group of members of the authority.  If failure 
to grant a dispensation will result in an authority or committee not 
achieving a quorum, this may well constitute grounds for granting a 
dispensation.” 

3.2.5 The Clerk points out that the request is made in connection with two categories of 
interest: firstly, for all the members for Parish Council land involved in the process; 
and secondly, for the interests detailed above for privately owned land.  The 
Committee may consider that a distinction can be drawn between these two 
categories. 

3.2.6 This is the first request received from Town/Parish Councils in the LDF process, and 
how this Committee deal with this request will set the precedent for other such 
Councils in Breckland. 

3.3 Options 

3.3.1 Refuse the requests, on the basis that while the formal views of the Town/Parish 
Council on the emerging LDF documents are desirable, they are not essential. 

3.3.2 Grant dispensations to the Councillors to discuss and vote only in connection with 
Town/Parish Council land. 

3.3.3 Grant dispensations (with or without 3.3.2) to speak and vote for land where their 
prejudicial interests arise only because they have links with a person making 
representations as Close Associates (including friends), and not for land which they 
or their family owns/has an interest in. 

15



3.3.4 Grant full dispensations to all the councillors listed above in connection with the LDF 
process. 

3.4 Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

3.4.1 As Town/Parish Councillors are statutory consultees and are part of this Council’s 
evidence of having sought the views of the public in the LDF process, their formal 
views are valued. To this end, Options 3.3.2 and 3.3.3 would be a possible 
compromise. 

4. Risk and Financial Implications 

4.1 Risk  

4.1.1 I have completed the Risk Management questionnaire and this report does not 
require a risk assessment because the issues covered by the recommendations are 
not significant in terms of risk. 

4.2 Financial  

4.2.1 None. 

5. Legal Implications 

5.1 None. 

6. Other Implications  

a) Equalities: An Equalities Impact Assessment has not been conducted as this is 
not a policy or a procedure. 

b) Section 17, Crime & Disorder Act 1998: None 

c) Section 40, Natural Environment & Rural Communities Act 2006: None 

d) Human Resources: None 

e) Human Rights: None. 

f) Other:  [e.g. Children’s Act 2004] None 

7. Alignment to Council Priorities 

7.1 Your Council, Your Services: 

 a) Strengthen community consultation and involvement. 

 b) Involve people in the design and delivery of services which meeting their 
needs. 

8. Ward/Community Affected 

8.1 Shipdham. 

 
Background Papers - None 
Lead Contact Officer: 
Name/Post: John Chinnery – Standards Consultant 
Telephone: 01362 656222;  Email: john.chinnery@breckland.gov.uk 
Key Decision Status (Executive Decisions only): Non-Key decision and not on Forward Plan 
Appendices attached to this report - None 
 

16



BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive to the 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE – 8TH JULY, 2008 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 10TH JULY, 2008 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN’S ANNUAL LETTER 
 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 To note the Local Government Ombudsman’s comments on his dealings with 
Breckland Council as set out in his annual letter attached. 

 

2. Recommendations 
 It is recommended that the Committee: 
2.1 Notes the report. 

 

 
Note:  In preparing this report, due regard has been had to equality of opportunity, 
human rights, prevention of crime and disorder, environmental and risk management 
considerations as appropriate.  Relevant officers have been consulted in relation to any 
legal, financial or human resources implications and comments received are reflected in 
the report. 
 

3. Information, Issues and Options 

3.1 Background 

3.1.1 The Local Government Ombudsman’s annual letter for 2007/08 is attached.  It sets 
out how many complaints were received by the LGO during 2007/08. It includes 
comments on the authority’s performance and provides statistical data covering a 
three year period. 

3.2 Issues 

3.2.1 The LGO received 26 complaints against the Council during 2007/08, the same 
number as last year. 

3.2.2 As in previous years, complaints about planning account for some two thirds of those 
received.  One complaint was about benefits, two were about public finance, one 
was about elections and the electoral register (which is outside the jurisdiction of the 
LGO) and there were two each about land and environmental health matters. 

3.2.3 No reports were issued against the Council this year. 

3.2.3 One complaint was settled locally.  The Council agreed to pay £400 to the 
complainant who incurred avoidable legal costs as a result of delay in completing the 
sale of land. 

3.2.4 Of the 26 complaints received by the LGO, 7 were treated as premature and were 
referred back to the Council for investigation. 

3.2.5 One complaint was outside the LGO’s jurisdiction and the remaining 17 were not 
pursued because there was no evidence of maladministration or because no 
significant injustice flowed from the maladministration alleged. 

3.2.6 The average response time of the Council was 15 days, some 4 days less than last 
year and within the LGO’s target of 28 days.  This puts the Council in the top 56.4% 
of authorities in terms of response times. 

Agenda Item 8

17



3.3 Options 

3.3.1 To note the report with no adverse comments. 

3.3.2 To note with report with adverse comments. 

3.4 Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

3.4.1 It is recommended that the Committee notes the report from the LGO with no 
adverse comments. 

4. Risk and Financial Implications 

4.1 Risk  

4.1.1 I have completed the Risk Management questionnaire and this report does not 
require a risk assessment because the issues covered by the recommendations are 
not significant in terms of risk. 

4.2 Financial  

4.2.1 None. 

5. Legal Implications 

5.1 None. 

6. Other Implications    

a) Equalities: An Equalities Impact Assessment has not been conducted as this is 
not a policy or a procedure. 

b) Section 17, Crime & Disorder Act 1998: None 

c) Section 40, Natural Environment & Rural Communities Act 2006: None 

d) Human Resources: None 

e) Human Rights: None 

f) Other:  [e.g. Children’s Act 2004] None 

7. Alignment to Council Priorities 

7.1 Your Council, Your Services – improve the quality and consistency of services 
provided to our customers. 

8. Ward/Community Affected 

8.1 Breckland wide. 

 
Background Papers - None 
 
Lead Contact Officer: 
Name/Post: Susan Allen – Standards Officer 
Telephone: 01362 656395, Email: sue.allen@breckland.gov.uk 
 
Key Decision Status (Executive Decisions only): 
Non-Key decision and not on Forward Plan 
 
Appendices attached to this report: - LGO’s Annual Letter 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



Breckland Council 

Standards

Elizabeth House 

Walpole Loke 

Dereham

Norfolk  NR19 1EE 

Tel: 01362 656870 

www.breckland.gov.uk 

Welcome to Breckland Council’s Standards Committee’s first newsletter. 

Standards Committee Meeting Dates 

All meetings are held in the Conference Suite at  Elizabeth House in Dereham 

and usually take place on a Tuesday at 2.15pm.  All meetings are open to the 

public and all parish and town councillors and clerks are warmly invited to at-

tend. 

The scheduled meeting dates for 2008/9 are: 

9th September, 2008 21st October, 2008 

2nd December, 2008 13th January, 2009  

24th February, 2009 7th May, 2009 

Welcome 1

New contact 

details
1

Standards

Committee

Meeting dates 

1

Local Assessment 2

Standards

Committee
2

Chairman Training 2

Clerks 3

Public Speaking 3

Interests and the 

LDF
4/5 

Inside this issue: 

Welcome

Issue 1 

July 2008 

New contact details 

To make it easier for you and your parish/town councillors to contact the coun-

cil on issues of standards and the code of conduct a new dedicated e-mail 

address as been created: standards@breckland.gov.uk 

Breckland Council has a new Monitoring Officer.  Tim Leader joined the Coun-

cil in November 2007.  Tim is a qualified Barrister and has many years experi-

ence on monitoring/code of conduct and standards issues and will be a great 

asset to Breckland Council.

Town and Parish Council 

NEWSLETTER

Agenda Item 9

27



Local assessment has arrived - what does this mean? 

From 8th May, 2008, the new, more locally based standards framework gives standards committees 

responsibility for the initial assessment of all allegations that a member of their authority or of a Town/Parish 

Council may have breached the Code of Conduct.  It also gives them responsibility for any subsequent 

investigations, decisions and sanctions. 

Once a complaint has been received the Assessment Sub-Committee of Breckland Council will meet to 

ascertain if the complaint is a valid one.  The complaint will need to meet certain criteria including:  

Has enough information been submitted by the complainant to satisfy the sub-committee to refer it 

 for investigation or other action?  

Is the complaint about someone who is no longer a member of they authority?  

Has the complaint already been the subject of an investigation or other action?  

Is the complaint something that has happened now or so long ago that there would be little benefit 

 in taking action?  

Is the complaint too trivial to warrant further action?, does the complaint appear to be malicious, 

 politically motivated or tat-for-tat? 

The assessment sub-committee will aim to complete the initial assessment within 20 working days.  They are 

required to reach one of three decisions: referral of the complaint for investigation, referral to the 

Standards Board or no action to be taken. 

Following the decision of the assessment sub-committee, the monitoring officer will write to all parties 

concerned with the decision. 

If the complainant is not happy with the decision that no further action will be taken on a complaint, they 

can request a review of the decision and the Council’s Review Sub-committee will meet to review the 

decision. 

The Council has produced a document on the assessment and review procedures, a copy of which is 

available on request. 

Breckland Council’s Standards Committee 

Breckland’s Standards Committee now consists of nine members—3 parish council representatives, 3 

independent members and 3 Breckland Council members. 

The new regulations also state that the committee must be chaired by an independent member, as should 

the assessment sub-committee and the review sub-committee. 

The parish council representatives are: Maggie Oechsle (Yaxham Parish Council), Brian Rayner (Necton 

Parish Council) and Malcolm Whittley (Oxborough Parish Council).  The independent members are: Joan 

Jenkins (Chairman of Standards Committee), George Ridgway and Michael Eveling.  The Breckland 

Council members are: David Williams, David Myers and Frank Sharpe. 

The assessment sub-committee and review sub-committee will only meet when required and each 

meeting will consist of four members, including one parish member, one independent (who will Chair the 

meeting) and one Breckland member.  If they are on the initial assessment sub-committee they will not be 

allowed to sit on the review sub-committee should it be required to meet to review the original decision. 

Chairman Training 

The Council would like to offer the Chairmen of all parish and town councils the opportunity to undertake 

some training to help them carry out their function with confidence and ease.  The event is free so please 

register your interest with Sue Allen, Standards Officer, on 01362 656870 or e-mail: 

standards@breckland.gov.uk.  Dates for the event will be notified when known. 

The aim of the training is :  

To enable participants to understand what is required in chairing different types of meetings

To practise skills and techniques to build confidence 

2 Town and Parish Council Newsletter 

28



To provide guidance in style, processes and behaviour 

The content will include:  

Different types of meeting; their characteristics and demands 

Preparation for meetings 

Relationships between officers and members 

At the meeting - controls; rules of debate; points of order; manipulation of meetings by others; 

 getting decisions; pace and timing 

Skills of chairing - assertiveness; listening; body language; techniques for stimulation contributions 

Handling problems and difficult people; public and other disruptions 

The perfect chairperson - control without control 

Clerks - are you feeling lonely? 

Are you feeling lonely and in despair?  Do you wish you had somebody to talk to about things that are 

happening to you in your role as a parish/town clerk?  Would you like to have a chat with like-minded 

clerks?  If so, read on. 

Breckland Council are very appreciative of the demanding role you undertake and would like to offer you 

the chance to be able to air your feelings, in confidence, with like-minded clerks who feel they have no-

one to turn to. We are looking at the idea of having a get together session in at the Council offices in 

Dereham one evening.  Refreshments will be provided! 

Is there anything you would particularly like to discuss?  If you feel you would benefit from an evening like 

this, which will be informal, then please let Sue Allen know on 01362 656870 or e-mail 

standards@breckland.gov.uk 

We look forward to hearing from you! 

Public Speaking 

Many times the Council is asked for information about public speaking and the rights, and the opening 

and closing of meetings to allow the public to speak and this raises concern for many.  We hope the 

information below will be of help to you. 

As you are aware, all parish and town council meetings must be open to the public and public notice 

must be given of the date, time and place of every meeting.  The parish or town council may exclude the 

press and public for any particular item, by resolution, where it is considered that the matter in open 

session would be prejudicial to the public interest.  This might be to deal with an item with commercial 

sensitivity; a personal issue; or something involving legal proceedings.  Otherwise, there should be a 

presumption of openness. 

Many town and parish councils nowadays set aside a period when the public can ask questions or make 

statements.  This is considered to be an excellent practice, where the period is defined and it is clearly 

understood that the public, generally speaking, may not participate in the debate on other items.  The 

agenda setting out the business to be transacted, which should have been made public beforehand, will 

say at what point this opportunity will be given and also specify the other business to be considered, and in 

what order. 

Although restricting public comment to a certain part of the agenda is sensible from a procedural point of 

view, it may well be that the odd occasion arises where a piece of information which will enable the 

debate to be moved on can be supplied by a member of the public.  The conduct of the proceedings is 

in the control of the Chairman and, taking account of local knowledge, he may be aware that a member 

of the public who is present can help.  Of course the members have been elected or co-opted to take 

decisions collectively on behalf of the parish, but the odd occasion may arise where common sense will 

suggest that it is in the interests of the debate for a point of explanation to be made by a non-member.  

This occasionally happens at Breckland. 

It is really a question of degree and, where a member of the public is invited to comment outside any 

specific period for public consultation, this would be limited to a point of explanation, clarification or 

factual information.  It would be wrong for that contribution to be extended into the debate that is quite 

rightly the prerogative of the members.

3 Town and Parish Council Newsletter 

29



Interests and the LDF Process 

As you know, the new Local Development Framework (LDF) is now being drafted.  At present, the process 

involves obtaining views and decisions in various forms.  This raises difficult questions as to when Members 

may have interests, which at the very least would have to be declared as “personal”, or otherwise might 

be “prejudicial” and preclude them from taking part.  It is most important that Members are careful to 

recognise these interests, both to avoid breaching the Code of Conduct, and to avoid possible legal 

challenges to the new LDF. 

The following is general guidance – please feel free to discuss your own position in greater detail with John 

Chinnery or Tim Leader if you need further clarification. 

(1) Professional links 

If you are a Planning Advisor, Architect, Builder, etc. and you have clients who may or will benefit from 

provisions of the LDF which are being formulated, you must be especially careful.  It would be totally 

unacceptable for you to take part in the formulation of a policy in order for it to benefit specific land 

which you know a client owns.  It would also be wrong for you to push, for example, for a village to come 

under a certain designation or for land generally in an area to be designated for development where you 

know a client would benefit. 

Where land representations have already been made or to your knowledge are likely to be made relating 

to a specific site owned by a client (e.g. for inclusion within a settlement boundary or under some special 

policy), then you must not take part in any debate on the LDF on any policy relating to that land.  This is a 

clear prejudicial interest. 

(2) Land owned by you 

Where you (or a member of your family) own land which may benefit from a policy, you must not:

take part in any debate which relates specifically to your area which may or will affect the value of 

 that land; 

take part in any debate about a site you own or an area/village including a site which you own, 

 where you have made or intend to make land representations for that site. 

Perhaps the most difficult questions arise where you either own large areas of land or are a professional 

advisor who has clients who own large areas of land, especially if the land is adjacent to a settlement.  In 

the situations mentioned above, you may have a prejudicial interest and be precluded from the process, 

but the question remains:  can you take part in debates about general policies in the LDF or about villages 

or towns other than those you are connected with?  Opinions will differ on this, but one thing is certain:  

you should carefully consider your own position and discuss it, if necessary, with the Monitoring Officer or 

other advisor.  If the policy is one which, even if it is of general application, could affect the value of your 

land (or your client’s land) you should not take part in the debate and should consider declaring a 

prejudicial interest.  A policy (e.g. for another village) which could not possibly affect your (or your client’s) 

land would not give rise to a prejudicial interest, but you may still decide to declare a personal interest as a 

landowner in another village. 

Please remember that the exemption for speaking in spite of a prejudicial interest before leaving the room 

only applies where the public have a statutory right to speak or are allowed to speak under an 

acknowledged and previously agreed scheme. 

(3) Advising another person on a specific site 

Be careful if you are giving general advice as a Councillor to someone on a specific site in connection 

with the LDF.  You should (obviously) not take part in any debate which could affect the value of that site if 

you have a “close association” with that other person under the Code – see the references and guidance 

mentioned on page 5. 

(4) Where you receive invitations from prospective developers 

Prospective developers are starting to extend invitations to some Members to come and discuss their 

4 Town and Parish Council Newsletter 

30



5 Town and Parish Council Newsletter 

proposals in private sessions.  While it is difficult to see that any breach of the Code is involved with this 

early, formative stage, you should think carefully before you agree to go.  What is the developer trying to 

achieve?  Why should you hear from one developer in private and not all the other, often competing, 

developers?  What would it look like to outsiders for you to have a private briefing/persuasion session?  Will 

you become identified with a particular developer?  The Council’s advice is do not agree to go:  

representations should be dealt with through the statutory procedures and discussions should be open and 

above board.  It is particularly important that you should not at any time show that you have made up 

your mind for or against something (until the right time in the proper decision making process). 

Nothing stated above affects the right for a Councillor to send in written representations within the normal 

procedures of their own or their client’s land in the Councillor’s private capacity. 

If any detailed advice on the LDF process if given by the Standards Board for England (SBE), it will be 

passed on.  References from the Code and guidance which may assist you are set out below. 

References 

“Personal interest”:     Code of Conduct, paragraphs 8 and 9  

 SBE Guide for Members (May 2007) pages 16-21 

“Prejudicial interest”: Code of Conduct, paragraphs 10 – 12 

 SBE Guide, pages 22 – 27 

“Family”:  SBE Guide page 20 

“Close associate”: SEB Guide page 20 

Speaking with prejudicial interest:  Code, para 12 (2) 

 SBE Guide, pages 25 and 26 

31


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Members' Interests in the LDF Process
	A07_Members Interests LDF_Appendices, 27/05/2008 Standards Committee

	7 Application for Dispensation: Shipdham Parish Council
	8 Local Government Ombudsman Annual Letter
	LGO_Annual_Letter

	9 Parish Newsletter

